
 

City Council Regular Session Packet
July 9, 2012 at 12:00 PM

Mayor: Cecil Burt

City Council: Scott Spanel – Council President
Chad Schall
Bill Adams
Cody Schmick

City Administrator: Tony Tolstedt

City Clerk: Elaine Bayer

City Attorney: Jason White

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 1 / 53



City of Broken Bow
Monday, July 9, 2012

City Council Regular Session

Approval of Minutes of June 25, 2012 Regular Council Meeting

Staff Contact: City Clerk

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 2 / 53



June 25 2012
Broken Bow, Nebraska

A meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City of Broken Bow, Nebraska was convened in 
open and public session at 12:00 Noon on Monday, June 25, 2012 in the Municipal Building at 
Broken Bow, Nebraska.  Present were:  Mayor Cecil Burt; Council President Scott Spanel; 
Councilmember Cody Schmick, Bill Adams and Chad Schall.  Absent: None.  Notice of the 
meeting was given in advance thereof as required by law. Advance notice of the meeting was 
also given to the Mayor and all members of the Council and a copy of their acknowledgment of 
receipt of such notice is attached to these minutes.  Availability of the agenda was communicated 
in the advance notice to the Mayor and all members of the Council.  All proceedings hereafter 
shown were taken while the meeting was open to the attendance of the public. 

Mayor Cecil Burt stated that the Open Meeting Act was posted on the north wall of the Council 
Chambers.

Mayor Burt presented the Consent Agenda and stated that the items on the Consent Agenda 
were: 

 Minutes – June 11, 2012 Council Meeting
 Claims – June 25, 2012 Council Meeting
 Conflict Claims – June 25, 2012 Council Meeting
 Request to close streets on north side and west side of Precious Angel Day Care 

Center on South 13th and South G Avenues for the annual 4th of July celebration 
at Precious Angel Daycare

 Approval of Pay Request No. 15 to Carrothers Construction in the amount of 
$134,723 for work completed to date at the Aquatic Facility with a $10,000 
retainage

 Pay Request No. 1 to Miller and Associates in the amount of $36,139.03 for 
Utility Improvements (Project No. 177-G-004) for College Estates Subdivision

 Approval of Joe Franssen as member of the Broken Bow Volunteer Fire 
Department and Roster for Broken Bow Volunteer Fire Department effective June 
26, 2012

Councilmember Schmick stated that he has a conflict of interest with the claim made payable to 
Schmicks due to the fact that he is an owner of the business.  It was moved by Councilmember 
Spanel and seconded by Councilmember Adams that Consent Agenda Item for Conflict Claims 
and Agenda Item for Approval of Pay Request No. 15 to Carrothers Construction in the amount 
of $134,723 for work completed to date at the Aquatic Facility be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and be placed on the Agenda as a regular Agenda Item.  The Mayor stated the motion.  
Upon roll call the vote was as follows:  Ayes; Spanel, Adams and Schall.  Nays: None.  Abstain: 
Schmick.   Nays: None.  Motion carried.  

It was moved by Councilmember Adams and seconded by Councilmember Schall that the 
Consent Agenda be approved as amended.  The Mayor stated the motion.  Upon roll call the vote 
was as follows:  Ayes: Schmick, Adams and Spanel.  Nays: None.  Motion carried.

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 3 / 53



It was moved by Councilmember Spanel and seconded by Councilmember Schall that the claim 
made payable to Schmicks be approved.  The Mayor stated the motion.  Upon roll call the vote 
was as follows:  Ayes:  Schall, Spanel and Adams.  Nays: None.  Abstain: Schmick.  Motion 
carried.

Discussion was held regarding Pay Estimate No. 15 to Carrothers Construction.  It was noted 
that the payment was for work completed through May 31, 2012 with a  retainage of $10,000 to 
cover the miscellaneous punch list and warranty items that may be pending in June.  After 
discussing the items that needed completion and the retainage amount, it was moved by 
Councilmember Spanel and seconded by Councilmember Adams to withhold an additional 
retainage fee of $75,000.00 on Pay Estimate No. 15 to Carrothers Construction and to approve 
payment in the amount of $59,723 on Pay Estimate No. 15 until items on the punch list and the 
warranty items have been completed in full.  The Mayor stated the motion.  Upon roll call the 
vote was as follows:  Ayes: Schmick, Schall, Adams and Spanel.  Nays: None.  Motion carried.

City Administrator Tony Tolstedt presented a brief overview of the new agenda management 
layout which is being used as part of the Beehive Agenda management implementation for the 
organization of meeting documents and also making them available to the public.  

City Administrator Tony Tolstedt presented a calendar of proposed dates for budget workshops 
to the Mayor and Council.  After discussing conflicts of some of the meeting times, the City 
Administrator stated that he would work with the Council on setting dates and times and present 
them to the Council for their approval at the next regular council meeting.

Water/Sewer Superintendent Darren Marten informed the Council that it was the 
recommendation of the Board of Public Works that the Mayor and City Council consider 
approval of the purchase of a dump truck from the Federal Surplus in Lincoln which will be used 
as part of the Water Line Replacement Program.  Marten also informed the Mayor and Council 
that the budget did include the purchase of a dump truck.  After discussing the matter, it was 
moved by Councilmember Adams and seconded by Councilmember Schall to approve the 
recommendation of the Board of Public Works and to authorize Water/Sewer Superintendent 
Darren Marten to purchase the dump truck from the Federal Surplus in Lincoln not to exceed 
$16,000.00.  The Mayor stated the motion.  Upon roll call the vote was as follows:  Ayes: 
Spanel, Schmick, Adams and Schall.  Nays: None.  Motion carried.

Electric Superintendent Doug Staab presented a recommendation from the Board of Public 
Works that the Mayor and Council authorize Electrical Superintendent Doug Staab to release the 
Natural Gas Firm Transportation due to change of customer type from a Type II to an industrial 
customer.  After discussing the matter, it was moved by Councilmember Spanel and seconded by 
Councilmember Schmick to approve the recommendation of the Board of Public Works and to 
authorize Electrical Superintendent Doug Staab to release and advertise the Natural Gas Firm 
Transportation.  The Mayor stated the motion.  Upon roll call the vote was as follows:  Ayes: 
Adams, Spanel, Schmick and Schall.  Nays: None.  Motion carried.

Discussion was held regarding the six month notice to terminate the Energy Pioneer Solutions 
Contract.  It was noted that should the Mayor and Council elect to give the six month notice to 

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 4 / 53



terminate the current contract, this will give the City and Energy Pioneer Solutions time to 
negotiate and sign a new contract at a later date.  It was moved by Councilmember Adams and 
seconded by Councilmember Spanel to give the six month termination notice to Energy Pioneer 
Solutions and to renegotiate a new contract with Energy Pioneer Solutions.  The Mayor stated 
the motion.  Upon roll call the vote was as follows:  Ayes: Spanel, Schmick and Adams.  Nays: 
Schall.  Motion carried.

City Administrator Tony Tolstedt was authorized to send the six month notice of termination to 
Energy Pioneer Solutions.

City Administrator Tony Tolstedt informed the Council that Ordinance No. 1106 should be 
amended to provide for City Employees and agents of the City to operate ATV/UTV in the 
corporate limits during commission of their authorized duties.     

Councilmember Spanel introduced Ordinance No. 2012-1117 entitled “AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY OF BROKEN BOW, NEBRASKA, AMENDING SECTION 6 BROKEN BOW CITY ORDINANCE NO. 1106, 
PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE AND REPEALING ALL PREVIOUS ORDINANCES 
OR SECTIONS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT WITH THIS ORDINANCE” and moved that the statutory 
rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended.  Councilmember Schmick seconded 
the motion.  The Mayor stated the motion and instructed the Clerk to call the roll.  The Clerk 
called the roll and the following was the vote:  Ayes:  Schall, Adams, Schmick and Spanel.   
Nays: None.  Motion carried.  The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of 
the Council and the statutory rule was declared suspended for consideration of said Ordinance.  
Said Ordinance was then read by title and thereafter Councilmember Spanel moved for final 
passage of the Ordinance, which motion was seconded by Councilmember Schmick.  The Mayor 
stated the question, “Shall Ordinance No. 2012-1117 be passed and adopted?”  Upon roll call 
vote, the vote was as follows: Ayes: Schmick, Spanel, Adams and Schall.  Nays: None.  Motion 
carried.  The passage and adoption of said Ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of 
all members of the Council, the Mayor declared the Ordinance adopted and the Mayor in the 
presence of the Council signed and approved the Ordinance and the Clerk attested the passage 
and approval of the same and affixed his signature thereto.

At 12:35 P.M. it was moved by Councilmember Spanel and seconded by Councilmember Schall 
that the Council meeting of the City of Broken Bow be adjourned.  

Ayes: Spanel, Adams, Schall and Schmick.
Nays: None.
Motion carried.

_________________________________ 
Mayor, Cecil Burt

ATTEST:
___________________________ 
City Clerk, Elaine L. Bayer

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 5 / 53



City of Broken Bow
Monday, July 9, 2012

City Council Regular Session

Approval of Claims for July 9, 2012 Council Meeting

Staff Contact: City Clerk/Treasurer

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 6 / 53



Accounts Payable Detail Listing

Pay# Post Date Due Date Amount Invoice Date PO# Date
Vend# Vendor Name

Status

7/3/2012 2:59:23 PM Page 1 of 4
City of Broken Bow

Account# Work Order Description Debit Credit

Angie Neben
17085 7/9/2012 11.057/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3223.00 General - Postage Reimbursement 11.05 0.00

Beaver Bearing Co.
17086 7/9/2012 10.247/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

08-3310.00 Street - Idler 10.24 0.00

Beehive Industries
17087 7/9/2012 1,800.007/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3410.00 General - Agenda Management Program 1,800.00 0.00

Broken Bow Airport Authority
17088 7/9/2012 1,083.337/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3409.00 General - Monthly Payment 1,083.33 0.00

Broken Bow Municipal Utilities
17089 7/9/2012 13,575.447/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3213.00 General - Weather Station 21.55 0.00
08-3219.00 Street - Trash Removal 11.13 0.00
08-3220.00 Street - Utilities 229.32 0.00
06-3219.00 Fire - Trash Removal 53.00 0.00
06-3220.00 Fire - Utilities 396.50 0.00
04-3220.00 Police - Utilities 29.62 0.00
04-3315.00 Police - Dog Pound Utilities 21.55 0.00
09-3220.00 Park - Parks Utilities 2,095.88 0.00
09-3220.00 Park - Shop Utilities 98.28 0.00
09-3219.00 Park - Shop Trash Removal 11.12 0.00
07-3219.00 Library - Trash Removal 22.25 0.00
07-3220.00 Library - Utilities 467.52 0.00
02-3219.00 Pub Bldg - Trash Removal 22.25 0.00
02-3220.00 Pub Bldg - Utiliites 770.00 0.00
11-3360.00 Tree Dump - Utilities 30.29 0.00
10-3220.00 Swim Pool - Utilities 9,295.18 0.00

13,575.44 0.00

Broken Bow Postmaster
17090 7/9/2012 450.007/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3223.00 General - Postage 450.00 0.00

Broken Bow Ready Mix
17091 7/9/2012 923.007/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

08-3425.00 Street - Maintenance Bldg Pad 300.00 0.00
08-3425.00 Street - South H and 5th 623.00 0.00

923.00 0.00

Champlin Tire Recycling
17092 7/9/2012 1,887.007/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3224.01 General - Rubber Picnic Tables for Pool 1,887.00 0.00

Creative Signs
17093 7/9/2012 748.197/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

10-3431.00 Swim Pool - Signs 748.19 0.00

Custer County Chief
17094 7/9/2012 148.317/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3209.00 General - Legals 148.31 0.00

Custer County Treasurer
17095 7/9/2012 8,627.657/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3217.00 General - Radio Communications 8,627.65 0.00

EMC Insurance
17096 7/9/2012 659.807/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3222.00 General - Reimbursable on Deductible Century Link 659.80 0.00

Elaine Bayer
17097 7/9/2012 134.327/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3205.00 General - Mileage and Meals for Finance Conference 134.32 0.00

Fairbanks International
17098 7/9/2012 635.947/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

08-3351.00 Street - Pallet Forks 635.94 0.00

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 7 / 53



Accounts Payable Detail Listing

Pay# Post Date Due Date Amount Invoice Date PO# Date
Vend# Vendor Name

Status

7/3/2012 2:59:23 PM Page 2 of 4
City of Broken Bow

Account# Work Order Description Debit Credit

Felsburg Holt & Ullevig (continued)
17099 7/9/2012 1,280.007/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3224.02 General - Quiet Zone Engineering 1,280.00 0.00

Fry & Associates Inc.
17100 7/9/2012 1,126.007/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

09-3339.00 Park - Memorial Picnic Table - Reimbursable 1,126.00 0.00

Grocery Kart
17101 7/9/2012 69.827/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

10-3223.00 Swim Pool - Supplies 69.82 0.00

HSBC Business Solutions
17102 7/9/2012 39.997/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

08-3310.00 Street - 1 Year Hotline Fee 39.99 0.00

JEO
17103 7/9/2012 11,912.007/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3224.01 General - Aquatic Center Engineering 11,912.00 0.00

League of Municipalities
17104 7/9/2012 369.007/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3205.00 General - Finance Conference 369.00 0.00

Markham  Construction
17105 7/9/2012 3,867.507/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

08-3425.00 Street - Waterway between CPPD and Runza 3,867.50 0.00

Marv Coble
17106 7/9/2012 42.357/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

11-3205.00 Sanitation - Mileage 42.35 0.00

Mead Lumber - Broken Bow
17107 7/9/2012 488.077/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

09-3311.00 Park - Paint/Supplies 488.07 0.00

Mid State Units
17108 7/9/2012 80.007/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

11-3360.10 Sanitation - Port-A-Potties 80.00 0.00

NATP
17109 7/9/2012 60.007/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

03-3206.00 Handi Bus - Dues 60.00 0.00

Ne Child Support Payment Center
17110 7/9/2012 414.007/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-1503.00 Liability - Child Support Payment 414.00 0.00
17111 7/9/2012 600.007/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-1503.00 Liability - Child Support Payment 600.00 0.00

Orschelns
17112 7/9/2012 53.567/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

08-3310.00 Street - Tires/Blade 53.56 0.00

Paula Daily
17113 7/9/2012 8.857/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3223.00 General - Postage Reimbursement 8.85 0.00

Platte Valley Communications
17114 7/9/2012 25.407/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

04-3310.00 Police - Antenna Parts 25.40 0.00

Prachts Ace Hardware
17115 7/9/2012 1,464.777/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

08-3310.00 Street - Paint/Thinner/Brushes/Supplies 400.65 0.00
10-3222.00 Swim Pool - Miscellaneous Supplies 406.17 0.00
09-3427.00 Park - Underground Sprinklers 148.48 0.00
09-3311.00 Park - Miscellaneous Supplies 456.26 0.00
02-3222.00 Pub Bldg - Casters/Trash Bags 53.21 0.00

1,464.77 0.00

Ramada Inn
17116 7/9/2012 146.007/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3205.00 General - Room for Finance Conference 146.00 0.00

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 8 / 53



Accounts Payable Detail Listing

Pay# Post Date Due Date Amount Invoice Date PO# Date
Vend# Vendor Name

Status

7/3/2012 2:59:23 PM Page 3 of 4
City of Broken Bow

Account# Work Order Description Debit Credit

Reams Sprinkler Supply (continued)
17117 7/9/2012 66.327/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

09-3427.00 Park - Irrigation Supplies 66.32 0.00

Road Safe Traffic Systems
17118 7/9/2012 937.197/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

08-3349.00 Street - Paint/Thinner 937.19 0.00

Russell Abstracting
17119 7/9/2012 127.507/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3222.00 General - Zoning Property Owners 127.50 0.00

S&L Sanitary Service
17120 7/9/2012 42.007/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

09-3219.00 Park - Trash Removal 42.00 0.00

Safety Kleen Corp.
17121 7/9/2012 165.957/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

08-3310.00 Street - Solvent 165.95 0.00

SourceGas
17122 7/9/2012 175.327/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

06-3220.00 Firemen - Utilities 67.71 0.00
07-3220.00 Library - Utilities 24.66 0.00
02-3220.00 Pub Bldg - Ito;otoes 82.95 0.00

175.32 0.00

Steve Scott
17123 7/9/2012 32.267/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3223.00 General - Postage Reimbursement Abatements 11.50 0.00
04-3223.00 Police - Supplies 11.66 0.00
04-3313.00 Police - Training 9.10 0.00

32.26 0.00

Tom Joyce
17124 7/9/2012 36.307/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

11-3205.00 Sanitation - Mileage 36.30 0.00

Tony Tolstedt
17125 7/9/2012 149.657/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3205.00 General - Mileage/Meals ICMA Conference 149.65 0.00

Trotter Fertilizer
17126 7/9/2012 359.427/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

09-3339.00 Park - Weed Spray 359.42 0.00

Trotter Service
17127 7/9/2012 4,143.617/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

08-3225.00 Street - Gasoline 1,164.56 0.00
06-3225.00 Firemen - Gasoline 115.57 0.00
04-3225.00 Police - Gasoline 921.31 0.00
05-3225.00 Rescue Unit - Gasoline 271.51 0.00
09-3225.00 Park - Gasoline 1,292.76 0.00
03-3225.00 Handi Bus - Gasoline 251.90 0.00
08-3310.00 Street - Tire Repair 29.00 0.00
11-3222.00 Sanitation - Tire Repair on Loader 97.00 0.00

4,143.61 0.00

Two Reds Automotive
17128 7/9/2012 79.147/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

08-3310.00 Street - Armor-All/Sealant 79.14 0.00

Varney Healthmart
17129 7/9/2012 26.497/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

10-3223.00 Pool - Gloves 26.49 0.00

Wenquist Inc.
17130 7/9/2012 157.747/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

08-3310.00 Street - Automotive Supplies 157.74 0.00

Schaper and White
17131 7/9/2012 725.207/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3214.00 General - Legal Fees 725.20 0.00

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 9 / 53



Accounts Payable Detail Listing

Pay# Post Date Due Date Amount Invoice Date PO# Date
Vend# Vendor Name

Status

7/3/2012 2:59:23 PM Page 4 of 4
City of Broken Bow

Account# Work Order Description Debit Credit

Nebraska Dept of Revenue (continued)
17132 7/9/2012 2,378.087/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-1500.00 Liability - State Payroll Withholding 2,378.08 0.00

Nebraska State Bank
17133 7/9/2012 16,275.587/9/2012 7/9/2012 Posted

01-3102.00 General - Payroll Taxes 494.33 0.00
08-3102.00 Street - Payroll Taxes 497.40 0.00
06-3102.00 Firemen - Payroll Taxes 42.88 0.00
04-3102.00 Police - Payroll Taxes 818.27 0.00
04-3102.00 Rescue Unit - Payroll Taxes 42.88 0.00
09-3102.00 Park - Payroll Taxes 427.35 0.00
07-3102.00 Library - Payroll Taxes 274.05 0.00
02-3102.00 Pub Bldg - Payroll Taxes 91.20 0.00
03-3102.00 Handi Bus - Payroll Taxes 67.21 0.00
11-3102.00 Tree Dump - Payroll Taxes 45.20 0.00
11-3102.10 CD Cell - Payroll Taxes 39.68 0.00
01-1500.00 Liability - Federal 6,334.76 0.00
01-1500.00 Liability - BBMU 3,693.09 0.00
01-1500.00 Liability - Employees 2,654.09 0.00
10-3102.00 Swimming Pool - Taxes 753.19 0.00

16,275.58 0.00

78,619.33 49 Non-voided payables listed.

Report Setup
     AP - Accounts Payable Listing : Entry Order
     Filter Options
          Starting: 7/9/2012
          Ending: 7/9/2012
          Banks: All
          Payable Status: Posted, Printed, ACH, Recorded, Voided
          Payables: All

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 10 / 53



Pay# Vend# Vendor Name Invoice Description Due Date Amount

7/3/2012 3:00:44 PM Page 1 of 1

Check Approval List
City of Broken Bow

17085 Angie Neben General - Postage Reimbursement 7/9/2012 $11.05
17086 Beaver Bearing Co. Street - Idler 7/9/2012 $10.24
17087 Beehive Industries General - Agenda Management Program7/9/2012 $1,800.00
17088 Broken Bow Airport Authority General - Monthly Payment 7/9/2012 $1,083.33
17089 Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal 7/9/2012 $13,575.44
17090 Broken Bow Postmaster General - Postage 7/9/2012 $450.00
17091 Broken Bow Ready Mix Street - Concrete 7/9/2012 $923.00
17092 Champlin Tire Recycling General - Rubber Picnic Tables for Pool7/9/2012 $1,887.00
17093 Creative Signs Swim Pool - Signs 7/9/2012 $748.19
17094 Custer County Chief General - Legals 7/9/2012 $148.31
17095 Custer County Treasurer General - Radio Communications 7/9/2012 $8,627.65
17096 EMC Insurance General - Reimbursable on Deductible Century Link7/9/2012 $659.80
17097 Elaine Bayer General - Mileage and Meals for Finance Conference7/9/2012 $134.32
17098 Fairbanks International Street - Pallet Forks 7/9/2012 $635.94
17099 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig General - Quiet Zone Engineering 7/9/2012 $1,280.00
17100 Fry & Associates Inc. Park - Memorial Picnic Table - Reimbursable7/9/2012 $1,126.00
17101 Grocery Kart Swim Pool - Supplies 7/9/2012 $69.82
17102 HSBC Business Solutions Street - 1 Year Hotline Fee 7/9/2012 $39.99
17103 JEO General - Aquatic Center Engineering 7/9/2012 $11,912.00
17105 Markham  Construction Street - Waterway between CPPD and Runza7/9/2012 $3,867.50
17104 League of Municipalities General - Finance Conference Registration7/9/2012 $369.00
17106 Marv Coble Sanitation - Mileage 7/9/2012 $42.35
17107 Mead Lumber - Broken Bow Park - Paint/Supplies 7/9/2012 $488.07
17108 Mid State Units Sanitation - Port-A-Potties 7/9/2012 $80.00
17109 NATP Handi Bus - Dues 7/9/2012 $60.00
17110 Ne Child Support Payment Center Liability - Child Support Payment 7/9/2012 $414.00
17111 Ne Child Support Payment Center Liability - Child Support Payment 7/9/2012 $600.00
17132 Nebraska Dept of Revenue L9iability - State Payroll Withholding 7/9/2012 $2,378.08
17133 Nebraska State Bank Payroll Taxes 7/9/2012 $16,275.58
17112 Orschelns Street - Tires/Blade 7/9/2012 $53.56
17113 Paula Daily General - Postage Reimbursement 7/9/2012 $8.85
17114 Platte Valley Communications Police - Antenna Parts 7/9/2012 $25.40
17115 Prachts Ace Hardware Supplies 7/9/2012 $1,464.77
17116 Ramada Inn General - Room for Finance Conference7/9/2012 $146.00
17117 Reams Sprinkler Supply Park - Irrigation Supplies 7/9/2012 $66.32
17118 Road Safe Traffic Systems Street - Paint/Thinner 7/9/2012 $937.19
17119 Russell Abstracting General - Zoning Property Owners 7/9/2012 $127.50
17120 S&L Sanitary Service Park - Trash Removal 7/9/2012 $42.00
17121 Safety Kleen Corp. Street - Solvent 7/9/2012 $165.95
17131 Schaper and White General - Legal Fees 7/9/2012 $725.20
17122 SourceGas Utilities 7/9/2012 $175.32
17123 Steve Scott Reimbursement 7/9/2012 $32.26
17124 Tom Joyce Sanitation - Mileage 7/9/2012 $36.30
17125 Tony Tolstedt General - Mileage/Meals ICMA Conference7/9/2012 $149.65
17126 Trotter Fertilizer Park - Weed Spray 7/9/2012 $359.42
17127 Trotter Service Gasoline/Repairs 7/9/2012 $4,143.61
17128 Two Reds Automotive Street - Armor-All/Sealant 7/9/2012 $79.14
17129 Varney Healthmart Pool - Gloves 7/9/2012 $26.49
17130 Wenquist Inc. Street - Automotive Supplies 7/9/2012 $157.74

$78,619.33

Report Selection: Check Approval List - By Vendor
Date Range Selection: Invoice Due Date

Starting Date:
Ending Date:

7/9/2012
7/9/2012

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 11 / 53



Vendor Name Invoice Invoice Description Amount

7/3/2012 3:02:09 PM Page 1 of 2City of Broken Bow

Check Approval List - GL Account

Account Description
General

Angie Neben General - Postage Reimbursement $11.05Supplies & Postage
Beehive Industries General - Agenda Management Program $1,800.00Equipment Purchases
Broken Bow Airport Authority General - Monthly Payment $1,083.33Airport Monthly Payment
Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal $21.55Weather Station Expense
Broken Bow Postmaster General - Postage $450.00Supplies & Postage
Champlin Tire Recycling General - Rubber Picnic Tables for Pool $1,887.00Aquatic Facility
Custer County Chief General - Legals $148.31Printing & Publication
Custer County Treasurer General - Radio Communications $8,627.65Radio Communications
EMC Insurance General - Reimbursable on Deductible Century Link $659.80Miscellaneous Expense
Elaine Bayer General - Mileage and Meals for Finance Conference $134.32Travel & Meeting Expense
Felsburg Holt & Ullevig General - Quiet Zone Engineering $1,280.00Wayside Horns
JEO General - Aquatic Center Engineering $11,912.00Aquatic Facility
League of Municipalities General - Finance Conference Registration $369.00Travel & Meeting Expense
Ne Child Support Payment Center Liability - Child Support Payment $414.00Child Support
Ne Child Support Payment Center Liability - Child Support Payment $600.00Child Support
Nebraska Dept of Revenue L9iability - State Payroll Withholding $2,378.08Payroll Taxes
Nebraska State Bank Payroll Taxes $3,693.09Payroll Taxes
Nebraska State Bank Payroll Taxes $2,654.09Payroll Taxes
Nebraska State Bank Payroll Taxes $6,334.76Payroll Taxes
Nebraska State Bank Payroll Taxes $494.33FICA/Medicare
Paula Daily General - Postage Reimbursement $8.85Supplies & Postage
Ramada Inn General - Room for Finance Conference $146.00Travel & Meeting Expense
Russell Abstracting General - Zoning Property Owners $127.50Miscellaneous Expense
Schaper and White General - Legal Fees $725.20Legal Fees
Steve Scott Reimbursement $11.50Supplies & Postage
Tony Tolstedt General - Mileage/Meals ICMA Conference $149.65Travel & Meeting Expense

$46,121.06Total General
Municipal Building

Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal $22.25Trash Removal
Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal $770.00Utilities
Nebraska State Bank Payroll Taxes $91.20FICA/Medicare
Prachts Ace Hardware Supplies $53.21Miscellaneous Expense
SourceGas Utilities $82.95Utilities

$1,019.61Total Municipal Building
Handi Bus

NATP Handi Bus - Dues $60.00Association Dues
Nebraska State Bank Payroll Taxes $67.21FICA/Medicare
Trotter Service Gasoline/Repairs $251.90Gas and Oil

$379.11Total Handi Bus
Police

Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal $29.62Utilities
Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal $21.55Dog Care
Nebraska State Bank Payroll Taxes $818.27FICA/Medicare
Nebraska State Bank Payroll Taxes $42.88FICA/Medicare
Platte Valley Communications Police - Antenna Parts $25.40Maintenance & Repair Equip
Steve Scott Reimbursement $11.66Supplies & Postage
Steve Scott Reimbursement $9.10Training
Trotter Service Gasoline/Repairs $921.31Gas and Oil

$1,879.79Total Police
Rescue Unit

Trotter Service Gasoline/Repairs $271.51Gas and Oil
$271.51Total Rescue Unit

Fire
Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal $53.00Trash Removal
Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal $396.50Utilities
Nebraska State Bank Payroll Taxes $42.88FICA/Medicare
SourceGas Utilities $67.71Utilities
Trotter Service Gasoline/Repairs $115.57Gas and Oil

$675.66Total Fire
Library

Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal $22.25Trash Removal
Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal $467.52Utilities
Nebraska State Bank Payroll Taxes $274.05FICA/Medicare
SourceGas Utilities $24.66Utilities

$788.48Total Library

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 12 / 53



Vendor Name Invoice Invoice Description Amount

7/3/2012 3:02:09 PM Page 2 of 2City of Broken Bow

Check Approval List - GL Account

Account Description
Street

Beaver Bearing Co. Street - Idler $10.24Maintenance & Repair Equip
Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal $11.13Trash Removal
Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal $229.32Utilities
Broken Bow Ready Mix Street - Concrete $300.00Street Construction
Broken Bow Ready Mix Street - Concrete $623.00Street Construction
Fairbanks International Street - Pallet Forks $635.94Equipment Rental/Purchases
HSBC Business Solutions Street - 1 Year Hotline Fee $39.99Maintenance & Repair Equip
Markham  Construction Street - Waterway between CPPD and Runza $3,867.50Street Construction
Nebraska State Bank Payroll Taxes $497.40FICA/Medicare
Orschelns Street - Tires/Blade $53.56Maintenance & Repair Equip
Prachts Ace Hardware Supplies $400.65Maintenance & Repair Equip
Road Safe Traffic Systems Street - Paint/Thinner $937.19Pavement Marking
Safety Kleen Corp. Street - Solvent $165.95Maintenance & Repair Equip
Trotter Service Gasoline/Repairs $1,164.56Gas and Oil
Trotter Service Gasoline/Repairs $29.00Maintenance & Repair Equip
Two Reds Automotive Street - Armor-All/Sealant $79.14Maintenance & Repair Equip
Wenquist Inc. Street - Automotive Supplies $157.74Maintenance & Repair Equip

$9,202.31Total Street
Park

Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal $11.12Trash Removal
Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal $98.28Utilities
Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal $2,095.88Utilities
Fry & Associates Inc. Park - Memorial Picnic Table - Reimbursable $1,126.00Maintenance/Repair Grounds
Mead Lumber - Broken Bow Park - Paint/Supplies $488.07Maintenance & Repair Bldg
Nebraska State Bank Payroll Taxes $427.35FICA/Medicare
Prachts Ace Hardware Supplies $456.26Maintenance & Repair Bldg
Prachts Ace Hardware Supplies $148.48Underground Sprinklers
Reams Sprinkler Supply Park - Irrigation Supplies $66.32Underground Sprinklers
S&L Sanitary Service Park - Trash Removal $42.00Trash Removal
Trotter Fertilizer Park - Weed Spray $359.42Maintenance/Repair Grounds
Trotter Service Gasoline/Repairs $1,292.76Gas and Oil

$6,611.94Total Park
Swimming Pool

Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal $9,295.18Utilities
Creative Signs Swim Pool - Signs $748.19Pool & Bldg Renovations
Grocery Kart Swim Pool - Supplies $69.82Supplies & Postage
Nebraska State Bank Payroll Taxes $753.19FICA/Medicare
Prachts Ace Hardware Supplies $406.17Miscellaneous Expense
Varney Healthmart Pool - Gloves $26.49Supplies & Postage

$11,299.04Total Swimming Pool
Sanitation

Broken Bow Municipal Utilities Utilities/Trash Removal $30.29Sanitation Contract
Marv Coble Sanitation - Mileage $42.35Travel & Meeting Expense
Mid State Units Sanitation - Port-A-Potties $80.00Port-A-Potties
Nebraska State Bank Payroll Taxes $45.20FICA/Medicare
Nebraska State Bank Payroll Taxes $39.68FICA/Medicare - CD Cell
Tom Joyce Sanitation - Mileage $36.30Travel & Meeting Expense
Trotter Service Gasoline/Repairs $97.00Miscellaneous Expense

$370.82Total Sanitation

$78,619.33

Report Selection: Check Approval List - GL Account
Date Range Selection: Invoice Due Date

Starting Date:
Ending Date:

7/9/2012
7/9/2012

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 13 / 53



City of Broken Bow
Monday, July 9, 2012

City Council Regular Session

Request to reserve parking places from south side of Tiffany 
Theater to the south side of creek 
Request to reserve parking places on Saturday, July 21, 2012 from the south side of the Tiffany Theater 
to the south side of the creek  between the hours of 10:30 A.M. and 2:00 P.M. for the Randy Franzen 
Benefit Poker Run

Staff Contact: City Administrator

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 14 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 15 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 16 / 53



City of Broken Bow
Monday, July 9, 2012

City Council Regular Session

Approval of EMT Application and EMT Roster effective July 9, 
2012
Approval of application od Joaeph Franssen as a member of the Broken Bow Ambulance Association 
and roster for the Broken Bow Ambulance Association effective July 9, 2012

Staff Contact: City Administrator

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 17 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 18 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 19 / 53



City of Broken Bow
Monday, July 9, 2012

City Council Regular Session

Request for 15 Minute Parking in front of Smoke Shack
Request for designated 15 Minute Parking in front of the Smoke Shack at 320 South 8th Avenue 

Staff Contact: City Administrator

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 20 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 21 / 53



City of Broken Bow
Monday, July 9, 2012

City Council Regular Session

Request for partial payment by Paulsen Inc. for work completed to 
date on Buffalo Run/Arrowhead Drive
Request for partial payment by Paulsen Inc. in the amount of $114,975.77 for the accepted portion of 
work completed on the Asphalt Paving 2012 Project on Buffalo Run/Arrowhead Drive

Staff Contact: City Administrator

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 22 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 23 / 53



City of Broken Bow
Monday, July 9, 2012

City Council Regular Session

Consideration and approval of interlocal agreement with the 
Broken Bow Municipal Airport 

Staff Contact: City Administrator / City Attorney

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 24 / 53



RESOLUTION 
INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into between the County of Custer, Nebraska, and the City of 
Broken Bow, Nebraska, pursuant to the inter-local Cooperation Act of the State of Nebraska.

Whereas, the City of Broken Bow now owns and operates the .Broken Bow Airport Authority 
through the Broken Bow Airport Authority Board, and;

Whereas, the citizens of the City of Broken Bow and the citizens of the County of Custer, 
receive substantial benefits from the use of the Broken Bow Airport; and

Whereas, the City of Broken Bow and 'The County of Custer wish to enter into this 
agreement to provide joint funding for the Broken Bow Airport Authority.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained 
herein, it is hereby agreed as follows:

1. The purpose of this agreement is to provide joint funding of the Broken Bow Airport 
Authority to enable the parties to deliver necessary governmental services to its citizens 
and taxpayers .at the lowest possible costs.

2. This agreement shall become effective upon the approval by each governing body 
authorizing the Mayor and Chairman to sign the agreement on behalf of the governing 
body. The agreement shall continue for one budget year, which shall be the 2011-2012 
budget year.

3. This agreement does not create a separate legal entity.

4. This agreement does not require the sharing of any equipment.

5. Under this agreement, the Broken Bow. Airport Authority shall   continue to run the 
Broken Bow Airport as it has done in the past.

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 25 / 53



6. The City of Broken Bow and the County of Custer each agree to provide one half 
(1/2) the total tax requirement of the Authority for the 2011-2012 budget year. The 
Airport Authority tax requirement for their Budget for FY 12-13 will be $26,000.00; 
therefore Custer County's share will be $13,000.00 and the City of Broken Bow, 
$13,000.00. All payments shall be made monthly and shall be paid directly to the 
Treasurer of the Broken Bow Airport Authority.

7. All property acquired during the 2012-2013 budget year by the Broken Bow 
Airport Authority shall remain the property of said Authority.

8. This agreement does not extend the liability of either entity. The Authority shall 
continue to carry liability insurance to cover the Airport operations.

            This agreement shall not be modified except by resolution of each entity involved.

__________________________ __________________________
Cecil Burt, Mayor

ATTEST:

__________________________ __________________________
Elaine Bayer, City Clerk 

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 26 / 53



City of Broken Bow
Monday, July 9, 2012

City Council Regular Session

Approval of Agreement for Professional Services with Olsson & 
Associates 
Council will consider approval of an agreement for professional services for electric system model 
creation and device coordination project. 

Staff Contact: Electric Supr. 

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 27 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 28 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 29 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 30 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 31 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 32 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 33 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 34 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 35 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 36 / 53



June 26, 2012

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS OF THE 
CITY OF BROKEN BOW, NEBRASKA, HELD IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS IN THE 
MUNICIPAL BUILDING ON JUNE 26, 2012.

The Board of Public Works of the City of Broken Bow, Nebraska met in regular session on Tuesday, June 26, 2012.  
Chairman, Gene Chapin called the meeting to order at 12:30 P.M.  Board members present were informed that this 
was a meeting of the Board of Public Works and was subject to the open meeting laws of the State of Nebraska a 
copy of which is posted at the back of the City Council room.  Board members present were, Chapin, Butch 
Brunken, Kelly Clay and Bill Blackburn.  Board member absent:  Wes Province.

Minutes of the June 12, 2012 meeting were not read as they were previously delivered.  It was moved by Clay and 
seconded by Blackburn to approve the June 12, 2012 minutes as presented.  Ayes: Brunken, Clay, Blackburn and 
Chapin.  Nays: None.  Motion carried.

Lynn French from Becton-Dickinson (B-D) Company informed the Board that B-D wants to increase the amount of 
renewable energy sources in their portfolio.  B-D would like to acquire a long term purchase power contract for 
wind power.  B-D has been working with Nebraska Public Power District (NPPD) on purchasing wind power.  Since 
Broken Bow Municipal Utilities contracts with the Municipal Energy Agency of Nebraska ( MEAN ) for our power 
the request to NPPD would need to come from MEAN to purchase wind power for B-D.  B-D is looking to contract 
for 25000 mega-watt hours of power per year.  Electric Superintendent, Doug Staab will contact MEAN to set up a 
meeting with B-D to start the process.  

Electric Superintendent, Staab discussed having Olsson Associates Engineering conduct an Electric Fault Study for 
Broken Bow with the Board.  The study would analyze our fusing and circuits.  The study will cost $26,000.00 and 
Staab has that money in the current budget.  Stabb informed the Board that it is estimated to take approximately two 
months to conduct the study.   It was moved by Clay and seconded by Brunken to recommend to the Broken Bow 
City Council they approve the contract to Olsson Associates Engineering to conduct an Electric Fault Study.  Ayes: 
Clay, Blackburn, Chapin and Brunken.  Nays: None.  Motion carried.

The following was discussed under Department Heads Updates:
 Electric Superintendent, Doug Staab informed the Board that the power outages experienced during last 

weeks wind storm were due to trees.  Staab is working with landowners to allow us to trim trees away from 
the power lines in problem areas to prevent future outages.   

 Water/Sewer Superintendent, Darren Marten informed the Board that Miller & Associates Engineering now 
have the easements and right–of-way information on Highway 2 in their office and can begin  work on the 
plan for the Hwy 2 Water Main Replacement Plan. 

 Marten updated the Board on his crews’ progress on Judge Ave. water main replacement.
 Marten informed the Board that his department is working on the GPS mapping.  They have completed the 

GPS measurements for 95% of the South side of town.

Items suggested for the next agenda were a follows: Dan Jacobson has requested to discuss renter deposits.

The following claims were approved for payment:

                                            Electric Department                   $ 323,464.13
                                            Water Department                           21,048.23
                                             Sewer Department                          15,158.18
                                             TSA/Trash/EPS                              34,339.73
                                             TOTAL                                     $ 394,010.27

It was moved by Brunken and seconded by Blackburn to approve payment of the claims as presented.  Ayes: Blackburn, 
Chapin, Brunken and Clay.  Nays: None.  Motion carried.

There being no further business to come before the Board of Public Works, it was moved by Blackburn and 
seconded by Clay that the meeting be adjourned.  Ayes:  Chapin, Brunken, Clay and Blackburn.  Nays:  None.  
Motion carried.  The Chairman declared the meeting adjourned at 1:12 P.M.

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORK OF THE
CITY OF BROKEN BOW, NEBRASKA

                                                          ___________________________________
Gene Chapin, Chairman

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 37 / 53



City of Broken Bow
Monday, July 9, 2012

City Council Regular Session

Council Consideration and Approval of CRA contracts

Staff Contact: City Attorney

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 38 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 39 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 40 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 41 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 42 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 43 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 44 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 45 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 46 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 47 / 53



Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 48 / 53



City of Broken Bow
Monday, July 9, 2012

City Council Regular Session

Ordinance No. 2012-1118 amending Ordinance No. 2012-1117
Ordinance No. 2012-1118 amending Ordinance No. 2012-1117 to provide for City Employees and 
agents of the City to operate ATV/UTV in Corporate Limits during commission of authorized duties and 
limit general populace useage to the removal of snow following cessation of a snow event. 

Staff Contact: City Administrator/City Attorney

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 49 / 53



ORDINACE  

FOR THE USE OF  

ALL-TERRAIN AND UTILITY-TYPE VEHICLE  
FOR SNOW REMOVAL ONLY 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-1118  

 

AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO all-terrain vehicles and utility-type vehicles; relating to all-

terrain vehicles to include utility-type vehicles; to allow the operation of all-terrain vehicles and 

utility-type vehicles within the corporate limits under certain circumstances AND FOR SNOW 

REMOVAL ONLY; to impose restrictions on the use of all-terrain vehicles and utility-type 

vehicles; to establish penalties for violation; to repeal conflicting ordinances and sections; to 

provide an effective date. 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL/CHAIRPERSON AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE CITY BROKEN BOW  NEBRASKA: 

 

 

Section 1.  A new Section 70.12 is added to the Municipal Code of Broken Bow, Nebraska as 

follows:   
 

(1) For purposes of this section: 

(a) All-terrain vehicle means any motorized off-highway vehicle which (a) is fifty inches 

or less in width, (b) has a dry weight of nine hundred pounds or less, (c) travels on three or more 

low-pressure tires, (d) is designed for operator use only with no passengers or is specifically 

designed by the original manufacturer for the operator and one passenger, (e) has a seat or saddle 

designed to be straddled by the operator, and (f) has handlebars or any other steering assembly 

for steering control. 

(Neb. Rev. Stat. 60-6,355) 

(b) Street or highway means the entire width between the boundary limits of any street, 

road, avenue, boulevard, or way which is publicly maintained when any part thereof is open to 

the use of the public for purposes of vehicular travel. 

(Neb. Rev. Stat. 60-624) 

(c)(i) Utility-type vehicle means any motorized off-highway vehicle which (A) is not less 

than forty-eight inches nor more than seventy-four inches in width, (B) is not more than one 

hundred thirty-five inches, including the bumper, in length, (C) has a dry weight of not less than 

nine hundred pounds nor more than two thousand pounds, (D) travels on four or more low-

pressure tires, and (E) is equipped with a steering wheel and bench or bucket-type seating 

designed for at least two people to sit side-by-side. 

(ii) Utility-type vehicle does not include golf carts or low-speed vehicles. 

(Neb. Rev. Stat. 60-6,355) 
 

(2) An all-terrain vehicle and an utility-type vehicle may be operated on streets and highways 

within the corporate limits of the city/village only if the operator and the vehicle comply with the 

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 50 / 53



provisions of this section AND ONLY FOR THE REMOVEL OF SNOW.  GENERAL USE 

OF ATVs AND UTVs IS OTHERWISE PROHIBITED WITHIN THE CORPORATE 

LIMITS OF THE CITY OF BROKEN BOW. 

 

SAID ATV AND UTV USE SHALL BE ALLOWED WITHIN THE CORPORATE 

LIMITS FOR 72 HOURS AFTER THE CESSATION OF A SNOW EVENT.   

 

(3) An all-terrain vehicle or an utility-type vehicle may be operated only between the hours 

of sunrise and sunset and shall not be operated at a speed in excess of thirty miles per hour. 

When operating an all-terrain vehicle or an utility-type vehicle as authorized in subsection (2) of 

this section, the headlight and taillight of the vehicle shall be on and the vehicle shall be 

equipped with a bicycle safety flag which extends not less than five feet above ground attached 

to the rear of such vehicle. The bicycle safety flag shall be triangular in shape with an area of not 

less than thirty square inches and shall be day-glow in color. 

 

(4) Every all-terrain vehicle and utility-type vehicle shall be equipped with:  (a) A brake 

system maintained in good operating condition; (b) An adequate muffler system in good working 

condition; and (c) A United States Forest Service qualified spark arrester. (Neb. Rev. Stat. 60-

6,358) 

 

(5) Any person operating an all-terrain vehicle or an utility-type vehicle as authorized in 

subsection (2) of this section shall have: 

(a) A valid Class O operator's license or a farm permit as provided in Neb. Rev. Stat. 

60-4,126; and 

(b) Liability insurance coverage for the all-terrain vehicle or an utility-type vehicle while 

operating the all-terrain vehicle or an utility-type vehicle on a street or highway. The person 

operating the all-terrain vehicle or an utility-type vehicle shall provide proof of such insurance 

coverage to any peace officer requesting such proof within five days of such a request. 

 

(6) All-terrain vehicles and utility-type vehicles may be operated without complying with 

subsections (3) and (5) of this section on streets and highways in parades which have been 

authorized by the State of Nebraska or any department, board, commission, or political 

subdivision of the state. This Ordinance shall not apply to ATV use within the corporate limits of 

the City of Broken Bow by the employees or agents of the City of Broken Bow or their agents.  

That said exemption from the Ordinance shall only be effective during the course of employment 

and while performing their official duties as an employee or agent of the City of Broken Bow. 
 

(7) An all-terrain vehicle or an utility-type vehicle shall not be operated on any controlled-

access highway with more than two marked traffic lanes, and the crossing of any controlled-

access highway with more than two marked traffic lanes shall not be permitted. Subsections (2) 

through (4) and (7) of this section authorize and apply to operation of an all-terrain vehicle or an 

utility-type vehicle only on a street or highway other than a controlled-access highway with more 

than two marked traffic lanes. 

 

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 51 / 53



(8) Subject to subsection (7) of this section, the crossing of a street or highway shall be 

permitted by an all-terrain vehicle or an utility-type vehicle without complying with subsections 

(3) and (5) of this section only if: 

(a) The crossing is made at an angle of approximately ninety degrees to the direction of 

the street or highway and at a place where no obstruction prevents a quick and safe crossing; 

(b) The vehicle is brought to a complete stop before crossing the shoulder or roadway of 

the street or highway; 

(c) The operator yields the right-of-way to all oncoming traffic that constitutes an 

immediate potential hazard; 

(d) In crossing a divided highway, the crossing is made only at an intersection of such 

highway with another highway; and 

 

(e) Both the headlight and taillight of the vehicle are on when the crossing is made. 

(Neb. Rev. Stat. 60-6,356) 

 

Section 2.  A person who violates Section 1 of this ordinance shall be punished as provided 

generally in the municipal code pursuant to Section 10.99 of the Broken Bow Code or be guilty 

of a Class III misdemeanor as defined in sections 60-6,356 to 60-6,361 of the Nebraska revised 

statutes. 

 

Section 3.   All terrain and utility type vehicles as defined by this Ordinance shall be registered 

pursuant to the Nebraska Motor Vehicle Registration Act. 

 

Section 4.  Any other ordinance or section passed and approved prior to passage, approval, and 

publication of this ordinance and in conflict with its provisions is repealed.   

 

 

Section 5.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force on __________, 20__, after its 

passage, approval, and publication as required by law. 

 

 

Passed and approved this            day of                          , 20     . 

 

 

 

                                                                   

         Mayor/Chairperson 

(SEAL) 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Clerk 

 

 

 

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 52 / 53



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
I:Technical Assistance/ATV Ordinance/Draft Alternative Ordinance 

 

Broken Bow Regular Session - 7/9/2012 Page 53 / 53


